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Nottingham College
Financial stataments for the period ended 31st July 2020

Key management personnel, Board of governors and
professional advisors

Key management personnel Key management personnel were represented by the following in
2019/20:

John Van De Laarschot — CEO; Accounting Officer

Joanne Clifford — Principal Finance

Phil Briscoe — Principal Curriculum

James Whybrow- Vice Principal Partnerships, Apprenticeships and
Enterprise

Board of Governors A full list of Governors is on page 16 of these financial statements.

Tan James acted as Clerk to the Corporation throughout the period.

Professional advisers

Bankers: Barclays Bank PLC
PO Box 3333
Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham
B3 2WN

Solicitors: Eversheds Sutherland LLP
Water Court
116 — 118 Canal Street
Nottingham
NG1 7HF

Internal auditors: KPMG LLP
St Nicholas House

31 Park Row

Nottingham
NG1 6FQ

Financial statements auditor:  Mazars LLP
Park View House

58 The Ropewalk
Nottingham
NG1 5DW
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Nestingham College
Financial statements for the pericd ended 31st July 2020

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

Objectives and key strategies
The members present their report and the audited financial statements for the period ended 31 July 2020.

Legal status

The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the purpose of conducting
Nottingham College. The College is an exempt chatity for the purposes of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011,

The College was created by the merger of New College Nottingham and Central College Nottingham on 8 June

2017,

Mission

Nottingham College has a clear mission to deliver, “Excellence in Education and Employment in Nottingham”. We
will do this by combining outstanding academic and vocational education in a curriculum co-created with and
powered by employers and communities; delivered by the best talent drawn from the FE sector and beyond.

T

- WHERE WE F
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WE ARE

ONE TEAM

Parasing

WE EXIST TO

Enabie independent
tives by providing
excellent oppartunities
through educalion inte
employment

Public Benefit
Nottingham College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the Secretary
of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on page

16.
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Meottingham College
Financizl statements for the peried snded 31t July 2020

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

Nottingham College has a commitment to deliver a significant, measurahle public benefit, and a full Public Value
statement, setting out how the College adds value to the social, economic and physical well-being of the community
served by the College can be found on the Nottingham College website.

In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Governing Body has had due tegard for the Charity
Commission’s guidance on public benefit and particulatly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of
education. The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised as charities must
demonstrate, explicitly, that their aims are for the public benefit.

In delivering its mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through the advancement of
education:

e Delivering high quality teaching, learning, assessment and support; with a place for everyone, regardless of their
educational background.

®  Producing learners who are successful and grow in confidence; providing additional support to those who need
1t.
Providing information, advice & guidance and developing students to secure sustainable employment;

e Supporting the development of new skills and knowledge to meet the needs of emerging and growth sectors;
via 2 Market Driven curriculum;

e  Promoting a culture of safety, inclusivity, and respect where every individual matters and providing an
environment where everyone feels safe;
Raising ambitions by challenging learners to be the best they can be;

e Maximising strategic partnerships for the benefit of the community including those with the Local Enterprise
Partnership, Local Authorities, key stakeholders, new & existing employers and colleges;

e  Reflecting the needs of the community including learners and employers in the range of the education and
training offer;

e Valuing our people;

e Gathering, listening to and acting on feedback from our leatners;

e Maximising business efficiency, delivering financial viability and value for money and

e  Continuous improvement through critical self-evaluation and improvement.

Implementation of Strategic Plan

During 2019-20 the Corporation continued to monitor the performance of the College against the plan approved during
2017-18. This strategic plan includes curriculum, property and financial plans covering the period 2017-18 to 2020-21.
The Corporation monitors the performance of the College against these plans. The Colleges continuing strategic

objectives are:
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Mottingham College
Financial statements for the pericd ended 31st July 2020

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

FINANCE
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The College strategic financial objectives are:
- EBITDA value to be above the covenant values at each point of measurement
- Minimum cash balances to be above the covenant values at each point of measurement
- City Hub capirtal project expenditure in line with approved budget
- Deliver the required return on asset disposals to support the debt reduction plan

COVID-19 Impact:

Throughout the pandemic the College has followed Government guidance. The College closed for most activities at the
end of March 2020 and delivery was moved online where possible. However, the College remained open throughout for
vulnerable students and the children of key wotkers. Nursery provision also remaining available. A dedicated campus
remained open for our SEND students to continue their studies throughout the first national lockdown.

There was significant investment in cameras, headsets, and laptops to address digital poverty among adult learners.
Following appropriate risk assessments some campuses partially reopened to enable vocational students to complete
practical assessments. Apprenticeship delivery was moved online and the College supported subcontracting partners in
modifying their delivery. Quality assurance and quality improvement procedures were adapted quickly to the changing

citcumstances.

The College recognised the need to build staff confidence and skills in terms of online delivery and training took place to
ensure effective teaching, leaming and development.

Bridging activities were used to allow students to catch up as appropriate.
Remote I'T access was made available and professional services staff wete able to continue to work remotely thus

supporting curriculum delivery.

Following a review of the situation and risk assessment, including a teview of social distancing, additional cleaning and
provision of sanitisers, professional services staff were able to return to the College over the Summer

In the new academic year 20/21 enrolment was successfully carried out and students were able to return to College in
classrooms and workshaps where capacity in many cases had to be reduced, to ensure social distancing,

The College has introduced a robust ongoing process for dealing with any students or staff who test positive for the
virus and staff are kept fully informed of all cases.

OFSTED Visit and Report

The College received a visit from OFSTED in January 2020, receiving a grade of “Requires Improvement” in line with
the College’s self-assessment. In the new academic year 20/21 an action plan was put in place to address the issues
raised and to move the College to a grade of “Good”.
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Mattingham GColleges
Financial statements for the peried ended 31t July 2020

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including the
operating and financial review)

Resources
The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.

Financial

The College has negative net assets of £92.0 million when the £121.9 million pension liability is included and long
term debt of £47.2 million. Whereas in 2018-19 thete were net current assets of £11.0 million in 2019-20 there were
net current liabilities of £37.7million as a result of to the College’s loans having to be classified as current liabilities
because of 2 breach of one of three covenants at July 2020. Tangible resources include a number of college sites

which are mainly owned, including the new City Hub.

People
The College employs 1,091 people (expressed as full time equivalents), of whom 703 are teaching staff.

Student numbers
In 2019/20 the College has delivered activity that has produced £55,207,000 in funding body main allocation funding

(2018/19: £60,888,000). Nottingham College engaged with over 20,500 students, including 2,186 apprentices, 5,838 full
time 16-18 year olds, 475 higher education students, and over 18,000 adult SFA-or loans-funded students, and further

students in community, family, commercial, pre-16 or international learning,

Reputation
The College is building a good reputation locally.

Stakeholder relationships
In line with other colleges and with universities, Nottingham College has many stakeholders. These include:

e  Current, future and past students
e  Staff and their trade unions

e  Governots

e TLocal MPs

¢  Funding Agencies

®  Local Enterprise Partnerships

® Local & national employers

¢  Local Authornties & Government Offices

e Corporate partners (banks, solicitors, auditors)
¢ The local community

Spotts clubs and bodies

®  Schools and universities

®  Other FE institutions
Partner training providers

e  DProfessional bodies

The College recognises the impozrtance of these relationships and engages in regular communication with them
through the College website, regular publications and by meetings.
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Hattinghiam College
Financial stztements for the peried ended 31st July 2020

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

Development and Performance

Financial Results
The Group generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £9,850 (2018/19: operating deficit of
£6,057,000), with total comprehensive income (a deficit) of £42,488,000, (2018/19(deficir) £16,723,000).

The Group has a deficit on unrestrdcted teserves of (£92,060,000) and cash and short term investment balances of
£15,956,000. The Group wishes to continue to accumulate reserves and cash balances in order to cteate a
contingency fund and to re-invest in tesources.

The table below sets out various items which have impacted on the trading result for 2019-20, and shows the
adjusted operating surplus after removing them, giving an undetlying surplus excluding exceptional items.

2020 2019

£7000 £000

Deficit for the year (£9,850) (£6,057)
Write down of Property for sale £5,097 £5,097
Restructuring costs £1,800 £138
FRS 102 pension costs £4,950 £5,564
Adjusted trading surplus for the year £1,997 £4,742

The net book values of 4 properties that the College is releasing was written down during 2018-19 and 2019-20 to
match the market value as at July 2020, which has resulted in an additional net charge to the SOCI of £5.097 million
for each of the 2 years. The four properties were the College’s Beeston, Clarendon, Clifton and Maid Mation Way
campuses. The Clifton Campus was sold at the end of the financial year. Movements on the other three campuses
are reported under post balance sheet events.

Developments
The college’s redevelopment as part of the long term estates strategy includes tangible fixed assets under
construction of £50,112,000 of which £30,156,000 is additions in the year. This relates to the new building, the City

[ub.

Reserves

The College net resetves are in a negative position due to the significant pension deficit atising from the Local
Government Pension scheme. The College reserves include £71,000 held as restricted reserves. The Group has
accumulated Income and Expenditure reserves of £23,840,000 (2019 £25,473,000) and cash and short term

investment balances of £15,956,000 (2019 £21,098,000).

Sources of income
The Group has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding source, largely

from recurrent grants. In 2019-20 the FE funding bodies provided 80% of the Group’s total income.

Group companies
The College has two subsidiary companies; Nottingham College Services Limited and EMTEC Colleges Limited.

The activities of EM1TEC Colleges Limited and Nottingham College Services Ltd have been consolidated into the
Group account. Any surpluses generated are transferred to the College under deed of covenant.
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Hetiingham Colicge
Flonancizl statements for ¢

sl endra Bist July 2029

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

Future Prospects

Curriculum developments

The College continues to develop its apprenticeship and employer programmes across a number of disciplines and
the vision of the new college is of an organisation that will be instrumental in helping employers raise productivity
and, through training and education, suppozt the implementation of innovation throughout the economy. The
curticulum is driven by local economic need, growth plans and key sectors. To achieve this we will:
®  Develop more extensive specialist apprenticeship provision
*  Ensure the ongoing development of the curticulum offer o meet the needs of the local, regional and national
labour market
®  Create a fuller commercial offer servicing the training and mentoring needs of business
®  Develop ‘fully rounded’ students with adaptable skills for employment and changing careers
®  Embed English and maths, and core employability and independence skills
e Promote a coherent offer with progression opportunities from Entry to HE enabling the best opportunity for
positive destinations
®  Develop partnerships and commercial arrangements that benefit students, communities and employers
s Establish a quality proposition that delivers a great student experience driving the College to be outstanding

m every way

The focus remains on improving outcomes and positive destinations (whether into further training of into
employment) for our students.

Impact of Brexit
The College continues to take account of the AoC guidance available on the possible impact of Brexit. The College

will continue to monitor the situation on an ongoing basis.

Financial plan
The College Board approved a financial plan in July 2019 which sets objectives for the period to 2021

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the management of the College’s cash flows, its banking, money market and capital matket
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks. The College has a treasury management policy in place as part of its

Financial Regulations.

Short-term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes is authorised by the Accounting Officer. All other borrowing
requires the authorisation of the Corporation and shall comply with the tequitements of the Financial Memorandum,

Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic

The pandemic significantly impacted the College’s commercial income streams during 2019-20. As the situation
worsened i March 2020, coupled with the longer-term situation in China directly impacting the operation there,
commercial income finished the year at less than half the target. Given the uncertainties in the economy, recruitment
of new apprentices was adversely affected as employers were reluctant to take on new staff. In addition, sundry
income such as refectory and rental income wete significantly adversely affected as students and staff had to operate

remotely.
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Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

The pandemic also directly impacted on the LGPS defined benefit pension liability, the College’s shate of the deficit
in the Nottinghum County Council scheme increased from £84,481,000 at July 2019 to £121,883,000 at July 2020.

Cash flows and liquidity

During 2019-20 there was a net cash outflow of £5,142,000 as rthe College invested in the Hub build. In 2018-19
there was a net cash inflow of £4,696,000. During 2018-19, the net cash position had improved as a result of the
HMG loan drawdown of £3.2 million and the receipt of LEP capital grants for the new build. The size of the
College’s rotal borrowing and its approach to interest rates was calculated to cnsure an adequate cushion between the
total cost of servicing debt and the operating cashflow. The debt servicing targets were achieved for the final 2

quarters of 2019-20.

The impact of the Covid19 situation on commercial and other income adversely affected the cash position too. The
College was able to make use of the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and the Provider Relief Scheme and paid all
staff in full (including pension contributions) throughout 19/20.

Going Concern
The College’s financial position and going concern status

The group ended the year with negative reserves of £92,060k. This is made up of an income and expenditure reserve
(positive) of £23,840k, a revaluation reserve (positive) of £5,912k, restricted rescrves (positive) of £71k and a pension
reserve (negative) of £121,883k. As can be seen the overall negative reserve position is dominated by the group’s
negative pension reserve which 1s a consequence of the group’s participation ia the Nottinghamshire Local Government
Superannuation Scheme (see note 23 to the financial statements). At 31 July 2020 the group’s share of the assers it held
in this scheme, £116,67 1k, were not sufficient to cover the group’s share of its liabilities (£238,554k). This has no
immediate cash consequence for the college. The scheme is subject to a regular triennial review which leads to an
adjustment in employer contributions. The last review was conducted as at 31 Masrch 2019 and the college has been
paying the consequential revised employer contributions since April 2020. The next review is expected to be conducted
as at 31 March 2022 with the college paying the consequential revised contributions from April 2023, (New regulations
came into force in September 2020 which permit schemes to review employer covenants and introduce changes to
contribution rates between triennial valuations. However, the college has not been notified that the Nottinghamshire
scheme intends to make use of this new flexibility).

The group’s total comprehensive income for the year was negative £42,488k. Again this result was dominated by the
college’s participation in the Nottinghamshire Local Government Superannuation Scheme with an actuarial loss of
£32,701k, a gain on disposal of assets of £63k and a deficit of £9,850k. Like many enterprises the college’s operations
were adversely affected in 2019/20 by the ingress of SARS-CoV-2 across the United Kingdom's borders. The pandemic
adversely affected the college’s apprenticeships, full-cost course and catering operations and the loss of income on these
operations outweighed the gains made by furloughing staff and closing college buildings.

Despite continuing deficits and the challenge of the pandemic the college continued to generate cash from operations
£8,376k in 2019/20 (£21,283k in 2018/19).

At 31 July 2020 the college had borrowed £47,198k from three organisations viz Her Majesty’s Government,
Nottingham City Council and Barclays Bank. These loans are secured against the college’s land and buildings.

These loans have four covenants of which during the year one was breached. Since that time the college has been in
discussion with its lenders about renewing / restructuring the loans. At present negotiations are ongoing but o date no

lender has stated that they will be withdrawing facilities.

A request has been made to Her Majesty’s Government for a capital repayment holiday to April 2022, This has not yet
been formalised. Until it is, the college will minimise its commitments to ensure it had the funds available to continuc as

a going concern if the request is rejected.
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Hottinghan Colls

Financial stataments for the peried ended 31st July 2020

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

Nottingham City Council is receiving capital and interest payments on theit loan as they fall due.

Barclays are receiving capital and interest repayments on their loan as they fall due. There is a revolving credit facility
for £4.9m which is due for renewal in April 2022 and a term loan of £2.3m which is also up for renewal in June 2022.
The college is currently working with Barclays to negotiate the renewal of all facilities hefore that time and the

expectation of the corporation remains confident of a positive outcome.

The college has continued to pay suppliers invoices as they fall due throughout 2020/21. Scheduled principal
repayments to Nottingham City Council and to Barclays Bank have continued to be made in accordance with the loan
agreements. No capital repayments to Her Majesty’s Government have been requested and so none have been made.

As noted in the post-balance sheet events section of the report the college has now sold its Beeston and Clarendon
Campuses and the net proceeds of these sales amounting to £6,742k has been applied to reducing its loan balances.

The corporation has received and reviewed a financial forecast prepared by its staff, covering the next 12 month period,
which shows that using its own resources the college can continue to pay its staff, meet its tax, and pension lahilies,
pay creditors as they fall due and meet all currently scheduled debt payments of both interest and principal for a period
of at least twelve months based on the financial assumptions within the forecast.

For all the reasons given above the corporation has concluded that while a material uncertainty exists the “going
concern” assumption is the most reasonable asswmption to use when presenting its accounts for 2019/20.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The College has well developed strategies to embed the system of internal control, including financial, operational and
tisk management which is designed to protect the College’s assets, reputation and financial stability, The Board has
overall responsibility for risk management and its approach to managing risks and internal controls is explained in the
Statement on Corporate Governance.

Based on the strategic plan, the Risk Management Group undertake a comprehensive review of the risks to which the
College is exposed. They identify systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate
any potential impact on the College. The intetnal controls are then implemented and the subsequent appraisal will
review their effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation actions. Risk Management Group will also consider any

new or emerging risks as they arise.

A nisk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed termly by the Audit Committee and reports the key
strategic risks to the Corporation. The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those tisks occurring, their
potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate the risks. Risks are prioritised using a
consistent scoring system from the College’s Risk Management Policy, which is reviewed every two years. Training is
undertaken periodically to raise awareness of risk throughout the College.

Outlined below is a descuption of the principal risk factors that may affect the College. Nor all the factors are within
the College’s control. Other factors besides thosc listed below may also adversely affect the College.

Risk of income shortfalls or reductions in Government funding

The College has considerable reliance on continued government funding through the further education sector funding
bodies and through Office for Students. In 2019-20 80% of the College’s revenue was ultimately publicly funded and
this level of requirement 1s expected to continue. There can be no assurance that government policy or practice will
remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

The College has based its forecasts on steady state ESFA (16-18) funding and Adult Education Budget. Apprenticeship

funding at 16-18 and adult levels is assumed to increase internally, and there is a risk that this increase in activity may not
be funded or achieved. Furthermore, the College is planning for the relationship with sub-contractor partners to change
and the plans include a reduction in thitd party provision.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:
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Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

e Funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements;

®  The College continues to strive for improvements in quality which will improve student recruitment and
increase financial benefits for the College;

®  College apprenticeship provision is made up of a mix of larger employers who are subject to the Employer
Levy, and SME employers who are not;

e Robust future planning, horizon scanning and marketing strategy to ensure all opportunities are optimised; and
Ensuring the College is focused on those priority sectors and identifying opportunities for income

diversification.

Risk of cost pressutes or failure to achieve efficiency targets

The College faces a number of financial pressures in line with most colleges in the sector. There are a number of
ongoing cfficiencies which need to be delivered to achieve the financial plan and added pressures e.g. from inflation and
pension rate increases. There is a risk that the economies of scale are not realised as quickly as anticipated resulting in
shortfalls in the future operating surpluses.

This risk is mitigated in a number of ways:

¢ By ensunng the College 1s rigorous in developing an efficient curriculum delivery plan which recognises the
contribution by course;

®  Detailed financial planning including sensitivity analysis;

e Maximising efficiencies from centralised procurement and embedding value for money across the organisation;

e Maximise efficiencies through the use of technology and the streamlining of processes; and

®  Comprehensive budget monitoring, forecasting and intervention plans, if required.

Failure to develop a motivated, high petforming wotkfotce resulting in impacts on students and staff
The transformation process to embed more flexible and modern employment contracts and pay related policies which
are objective and non-discriminatory creates a number of risks due to the scale of change required and the impact on
staff.
This risk is mitigated in 1 number of ways:

®  Staff engagement and internal communication strategy

¢ Collaboration and negotiation with trade unions

¢  Comprehensive professional and legal advice

Performance indicators
The College reports on a suite of Key Performance Indicators (KI'I’s) to the Corporation including:

KP1 Target for KPI Actual
% Retention (Classroom based students) 92% 91.9%
Pay costs as % of income (excl. restructuring/FRS102pension 62.76% 64.6%
& adjusted for franchised income)

EBITDA as % of income ~ education specific 12.02% 5.0%

The College is committed to observing the importance of sector measures and indicators. The College is tequired to
complete the annual Finance Record for the Education and Skills Funding Agency ("ESFA"). The Finance Record
produces a financial health grading. Based upon the Education and Skills Funding Agency assessment the financial
health of the college 1s “Inadequare” for 2019-20.

Student achievements
For class room based provision, the College achievement rate for 2019-20 was 83.3% compared to 2018-19 at
85.2%, and the overall apprenticeship achievement rates decreased to 61.1% for 2019-20 from 65.9% in 2018-19.

Equality statement
The College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We respect and value

positively differences in race, gender, sexual orentation, disability, religion or belief and age. We strive vigorously to
remove conditions which place people at a disadvantage, and we will actively combat bigotry. This policy is
resourced, implemented and monitored on a planned basis. The College’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy is

published on the College's website.
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Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

The College publishes an Annual Equality Report and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance with all relevant
equality legislation including the Equality Act 2010. The College undertakes equality impact assessments on all new
policies and procedures and publishes the results. Equality impact assessments are also undertaken for existing
policies and procedures on a prioritised basts.

The College considers all employment applications from disabled petsons, beating in mind the apfitudes of the
individuals concerned, and guarantees an interview to any disabled applicant who meets the essental criteria for the
post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with the
College continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities fot promotion
which, as far as possible, provide identical opportunities to those of non-disabled employees.

During the year, the College signed up to the Association of College’s Mental Health and Wellbeing Charter.

Disability statement
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010:

1 The College has a specialist student support tcam, who can provide information, advice and arrange
support where necessary for students with disabilities. There is a4 continuing programme of staff
development to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate support for students who have
learning difficultics and/or disabilities.

There is a list of specialist equipment, such as radio aids, which the College can make available for use

by students and a range of assistive technology is available in the learning centre.

3 The admissions policy for all students is described in the College charter. Appeals against a decision
not to offer a place are dealt with under the complaints policy.

4 Specialist programmes are described in College prospectuses.

Counselling and welfare services are described in the College Student Guide, which is issued ro

students together with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure leaflets at induction.

3]

[

Trade union facility time

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the college to publish information
on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the college

Numbers of employees who were relevant period | FTE employec number
50 to 1,500 employecs I 1,091
Percentage of time Number of employees

0% 0 -

1-50% 12

51-99% 0

100% 0

Total cost of facility time £18,444.57
Total pay bill £41,523.000
Percentage of total bill spent on facility time 0.04%
‘T'ime spent on paid trade union activitics as a percentage of total ) e N

paid factlity time
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Mottinghan Callege
Firancial siatemanis for the peried ended 31t July 2020

Report of the Members of the Corporation (including
the operating and financial review)

Payment performance

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, requires Colleges, in the absence of agreement to the
contrary, to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the provision of goods ot services or the date on
which the invoice was recetved. During the accounting period 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020, the percentage for the

College was 79%.

Events after the end of the reporting period

The College started to teach from its new City Hub in November 2020,

The College’s Beeston Campus was sold in November 2020, the sale proceeds were £3,537k
The Clarendon Campus was sold in December 2020, the sale proceeds were £3,205k

‘The sale proceeds from the sales of Beeston and Clarendon were used to reduce the College’s borrowings from
ESFA.

Like other colleges Nottingham College took patt in the third national lockdown from 5 January to 8 March 2021
with very limited on-site teaching. Our students retutn to campus from 8 March 2021 onwards was accompanied by
large scale lateral flow testing for SARS-CoV-2.

In February 2021 the College served notice on Nottingham City Council that it intended to complete the transfer of
land which involved handing our former Maid Marion Way campus to the City Council. The College will realise a net
receipt of £900k which will be used to reduce the College’s borrowings from ESFA.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors are unaware; and each member has taken all the steps
that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the College’s

auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the Cotporation on 29% March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

[ —_
C/()\—LQ/\ e \wvo e b

Carole Thorogood
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Mottingham GCollege
Financial statenients for the peried ended 31st July 2020

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal
Control

The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of the College to obtain a better
understanding of its governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period from 1 August 2019 to
31 July 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

The College endeavours to conduct its business:

i maccordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life
(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership);

ii. in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges in The Code of Good
Governance for English Colleges (“the Code™); and

tii. having due regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code 2014 insofar as it is applicable to the further
education sector.

The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance and in particular the
College has adopted and complied with the Code. We have not adopted and therefore do not apply the UK
Corporate Governance Code. However, we have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing
upon best practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be
relevant to the further education sector and best practice.

In the opinion of the Govermnors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and it has complied
throughout the period ended 31 July 2020. The Governing Body recognises that, as a body entrusted with both
public and private funds, it has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all
times. In cartying out its responsibilities, it takes full account of The Code of Good Governance for English Colleges
issued by the Association of Colleges in March 2015, which it formally adopted on 14 June 2017.

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011, The Governors, who are
also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity
Commission’s guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear elsewhere in these financial
statements.
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Mottinghamn Colicge
Financial statements for the period ended 31st July 2020

Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal
Control

The Corporation
The members who served the Corporation during the year and up to the date of signature of this report were as

listed in the table below:

Name Date of Term of Date of Status of appointment Committees served Attendance to
appointment office expiry retirement/ 31+ July 2020
date resignation %
Carole Thorogood 8 June 2017 21 July 2021 [ixtermal Governunce & Search 100
(Chair) Remuncration
Anja Beriro 16 April 2018 21 July 2021 FExternal Govemance & Search 82
Claiee Brookes 9 December 31 July 2020 31 July 2020 Student 67
2019
14 September 31 July 2021
2020
Mary Carswell 1 Aug 2013 31 July 2022 l<ixternal Governance & Scarch 100
Remuneration
l.carning & Quality
Philip Crompron 4 March 2019 31 July 2022 2 September lixternal Governance & Scarch 92
2020
Andrew Dickinson 16 April 2018 31 July 2021 [xternal Audit, Remuneration 86
Richard Donovan 8 Junc 2017 22 Nov 2019 lixternal Audit 71
Resigned from Audit
Committee 22.2.21
Michacl Greeen 4 March 2019 3L July 2022 ixternal Remuneration 60
Parricia | Tacman 30 March 2020 31 July 2023 f<xternal Governance & Scarch 100
Lcarning & Qualiry
Jonathan [lawley 4 March 2019 31 July 2022 [ixternal Audit 7
Shauna Hipkiss 1 August 2019 31 July 2020 31 July 2020 Student 44
Neghat Khan 1 Ocr 2018 31 July 2021 lixternal 70
Jobn van de 21 Sep 2016 N/A Chuef 1oxecutive Officer Governunce & Scarch 922
Laarschot Learming & Quality
Rebecca Pate 22 Jan 2018 31 July 2019 14 September Staff 1nn
2020
Liam Perkins 1 Aug 2018 31 July 2020 31 July 2020 Statt 100
Melanie Pope 4 March 2019 31 July 2022 5 Novemnber Fixtemal Governance & Scarch 0
2019
Andrew Unite 16 Apr 2018 31 July 2021 Iixternal Governance & Scarch {10
Michael Wisher 1 Aug 2014 31 July 2021 Fxtermal Audit 93
[Menry Teke 14 Scptember 31 July 2021 Student Learming & Quality
2029
Nick Proverbs 12 October 31 July 2022 Staff
2020
Liam Sewell 12 October 31 July 2022 Staff Learning & Quality
202t
Sharon Townes 25 January 24 January External Learning & Quality
2021 2025
Allen Motst 25 January 24 January [ixternal Audit trom 22221
2021 2025
Andy Gnffin 25 January 24 January [ixternal Audit from 222,21
2021 2025
Andrew Simpson 25 January 24 January Iixtermal
2021 2025

Ian James served as Cletk to the Cotporation.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal
Control

It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to hear on issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standards of conducr.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of the College
together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality
matrers and personnel-related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues. The Corporation meets

twice each term.

The Corporation conducts its business through a number of commirtees. Fach committee has terms of reference,
which have been approved by the Corporation. These committees are Governance & Search, Audit and
Remunecration. Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Corporation, are available
on the College’s website www.nortinghamcollege.ac.uk or from the Clerk to the Cotporation at:

Nottingham College
Highfields Campus
Jesse Boot Avenue
The Science Park
Nottingham

NG7 2RU

‘The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the governors. The registet 1s
available for inspection at the above address.

All governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College’s expense
and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the Board for ensuting that all applicable
procedures and regulations are complied with. The appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matters for

the Corporation as a whole.

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to governors in a timely manner, prior to Board meetings. Briefings

are provided on an ad hoc basis.

"The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group dominates its
decision-making process. The Corparation considers that each of its non-executive members is independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of

their independent judgement.

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer are separate.

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the Corporation as a whole. The
Corporation has a governance and search committee, cousisting of five members of the Corporation, which is
responsible for the selection and nomination of any new member for the Corporation’s consideration. The
Corporation is responsible for ensuring that appropriatc training is provided as required.

Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding four years.

Corporation performance

The Corporation assesses its petformance as good hased on:

e Results of internal and external audits

e Attendance and decision making at Corporation meetings

Remuneration Committee

Throughout the period ended 31 July 2020 the College’s Remuneration Committec comptised four members of the
Corporation. The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and
benefits of the Accounting Officer and other key management personnel. Details of remuneration for the period
ended 31 July 2020 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal
Control

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises four members of the Corporation (excluding the Accounting Officer and Chair).

The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of refetence approved by the Corporation.

The Audit Committee meets on at least a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College’s internal,
reporting accountants and financial statements auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent
discussion, without the presence of College management. The Committee also receives and considers reports from
the main FE funding bodies as they affecr the College’s business.

The College’s internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance
g ! ysten ) g g !
processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings to management and the Audit

Committee.

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and internal audit undertakes
periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have been implemented.

The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal, reporting accountants and
financial statements auditors and their remuneration for audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the

Corporation.,

Internal Control

Scope of responsibility

The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting Officer,
for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of the College’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which they are personally responsible, in accordance
with the responsibilities assigned to them in the Financial Memorandum between Nottingham College and the
funding bodies. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for reporring to the Corporation any material weaknesses
or breakdowns in internal control.

The purpose of the system of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of

failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effecaveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in place in Nottingham College for the period ended 31 July 2020 and up to the
dare of approval of the anaual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitgate those risks. The Corporation is of the view that
there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluaring and managing the College's significant risks that has
been in place for the period ended 31 July 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
This process is regulatly reviewed by the Corporation.

The risk and control framework
The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administrative

procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it

includes:
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Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal
Control

e comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the governing body

®  regular reviews by the governing body of pedodic and annual financial reports which indicate financial performance
against forecasts

®  setting fargets to measure financial and other performance

¢ clearly defined capital investment contro] guidelines

¢  the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate.

Nottungham College has an wnternal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the ESIFA’s
Post 16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to
which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the
internal audit plans are endorsed by the Corporation on the recommendation of the audit committee. At minimum,
annually, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides the governing body with a reporf on internal audir activity in the
College. The report includes the HIA’s independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s
system of risk management, controls and governance processes.

Review of effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. Their review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by:

e the work of the internal auditors

e the work of the executive management team within the College who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework

®  comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the reporting accountant for regularity assurance, the
appeinted funding auditors in their management letters and other repotts.

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of their teview of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the work of the internal auditor and other
soutces of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in

place.

®  The senior management team receives teports setting out key performance and risk indicators and considers
possible control issues brought to their attenton by eatly warning mechanisms, which are embedded within the
departments and reinforced by risk awareness training. The senior management team and the Audit Committee
also receive regular reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations
for improvement. The Audit Committec's role in this atea is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements
for internal control. The Corporation's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control and
receives repoits thereon from the senior management team and the Audit Commirtee. The emphasis is on
obtaining the rclevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. At its December 2020
meeting, the Corporation carried out the annual assessment for the period ended 31 July 2020 by considering
documentation from the senior management team and infernal audit, and taking account of events since 31 July
2020.

®  Based on the advice of the Audit Commiittee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of the opinion that
the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control, and has
fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the efféctive and effivient use of resources, the solvency of the institntion and the body

and the safeguarding of their assets’.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 29" March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

" "_'_-..-'_F'_'_’.- -
7 e / f (f 3 /
b, \\)\/\/_\\}\/Lfio ek vy AKX GG
Carole Thorogoad John ¥ de Laarschot
Chair of Governors Accounting Officer
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Nottingham Coliege
Financial statements for the period ended 315t July 2020

Governing Body's statement of the College’s
regularity, propriety and compliance with Funding
Body Terms and Conditions of funding

The Corporation has considered its responsibility to notify the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of funding, under the College’s
grant funding agreement and contracts with ESFA. As part of our consideration we have had due regard to the grant
funding agreements and contracts with ESFA.

We confirm, on behalf of the Corporation, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our knowledge, we are able to
identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the College, ot material non-compliance with the terms
and conditions of funding under the College’s grant funding agreements and contract with ESFA.

We confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the ESFA.

C_h (N »\ L \ WX cr) v

. I / /7
ord ool 4l

Carole Thorogood Johﬁ van de Laarschot
Chair of Governors Accounting Officet
29 March 2021 29 March 2021
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Statement of the responsibilities of the members of
the Corporation

The members of the Corporation, as charity trustees, are required to present audited financial statements for each
financial year.

Within the terms and conditions of the College’s grant funding agreements and contracts with HSFA, the
Corporation, through its Accounting Officer, is required to prepare financial statements and an operating and
financial review for each financial year in accordance with the 2015 Statement of Recommended Practice —
Accounting for Further and Higher Education, ESFA’s college accounts direction and the UK’s Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and its surplus/deficit
of income over expenditure for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required to:

@ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently

®  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and pradent

e  state whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements

®  prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to assume that the College will

continue in opera tion.

The Corporation is also required to prepare a Members” Report which describes what it is trying to do and how it is
going about i, including the legal and administrative status of the College.

The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy, at
any time, the financial position of the College, and which enable it to ensure that the financial statements are
prepated in accordance with the relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and
Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it
in order to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Members of the Corporation are responsible for the integrity of the College’s website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other

jutisdictions.

Members of the Corporation are tesponsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern them. In addition,
they are responsible for ensuring thar funds from the ESFA arc used only in accordance with ESFA’s grant funding
agreements and contracts and any other conditions that may be prescribed from time ro time. Members of the
Cotporation must ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place in order to safeguard
public and other funds and to ensure they arc used propetly. In addition, members of the Cotporation are
responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective management of the College's resources and expenditure,
so that the benefits that should be derived from the application of public funds from ESFA and other public bodies

are not put at risk.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 29 March 2021 and signed on 1ts behalf by:

C CA -'ui-.n. \\‘\JQ} =g "fmf.--‘c't:q {

Carole Thorogood
Chair of Governors
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Nottingham College

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nottingham College (the ‘College’) and its subsidiaries {the
‘Group’) for the year ended 31 July 2020 which comptise the Consolidated and College Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, the Consolidated and College Statement of Changes in Reserves, the Consolidated and College
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the 2019 Statement of
Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and College’s affairs as at 31 July 2020 and of the Group’s
and College’s deficit of expenditure over income for the year then ended; and

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and College in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Lthical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilifics in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit

evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to the Going Concern accounting policy on page 31 in the consolidated financial statements. As stated
on page 31, these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in the Report of the Members of the
Corporation, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the College and Group’s ability

to continue as a gOlﬂg concern.

Qur opinion 1s not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The Corporation ate responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in out report, we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated. If we identfy such materal inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to repott thar fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the tollowing matters where the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from
branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

B the information given in the report of the Members of the Corporation, including the operating and financial
review and statement of corporate governance, is inconsistent with the financial statements; and

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Corporation

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Cotporation set out on page 21, the
Corporation is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the Corporation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is responsible for assessing the Group and College’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Corporation either intend to cease operations, ot have no realistic alternative hut to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a2 whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audiror’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that un audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can adse from fraud or error and are considered
matenal if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these financial statcments.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditer’s teport,
Other required reporting

Opinion on other matters prescribed in the OfS Audit Code of Practice issued under the Further and
Higher Education Act 1992

In our opinion, in all material respects:

. funds provided by the OfS and UK Rescarch and Innovation (including Research England) have been applied
in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions attached to them; and

. the requirements of OfS’s accounts direction have been met.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the OfS Audit Code of Practice requires
us to report to you if, in out opinion:
. the provider’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the financial sratements, has been materially

misstated; or

the provider’s expenditure on access and participation activities, as disclosed in the financial statements, has been

matenally misstated.
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Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the Corporation as a body in accordance with Article 22 of the College’s
Articles of Government. Our audit wotk has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Corporation those matters we are required to state fo them in an auditor’s repott and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Group and College and the Corporation as a body for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Mazars LLP m %Om LL/
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Park View House

58, The Ropewalk

Nottingham

NG1 5DW

Date 3\ [@ /'2-"1‘[
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To: The corporation of Nottingham College and Secretary of State for Education acting through
Education and Skills Funding Agency (“ESFA”)

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 6 October 2020 and further to the requirements and
conditions of funding in ESFA’s grant funding agreements and contracts, or those of any other public funder, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would
suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by Nottingham College during the period
1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020 have not been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions

do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post 16 Audit Code of Practice (“the Code”) issued by the ESFA,
In line with this framework, our work has specifically not considered income received from the main funding grants
generated through the Individualised Learner Record data retutns, for which the ESEA has other assurance arrangements
m place.

This report is made solely to the corporation of Nottingham College and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the corporation of Nottingham College and
the ESF.A those matters we are required to state in a repost and for no other purpose. T'o the fullest extent permitred by
law, we do not accept, or assume, responsibility to anyone other than the corporation of Nottingham College and the

ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Nottingham College and the reporting accountant

The corporation of Nottingham College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & Higher Education Act
1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes intended by Patliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which

govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Code.
We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020 have not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance

engagement as defined in that framewotk.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations
in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that mighr be identified in a

reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagemenr includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the college’s income and

expenditure,
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Mottingham College
Einancial statemends for the pericd ended 37 July 2020

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

. Reviewed the statement on the College’s regularity, propriety and compliance with Funding body terms and
conditions of funding.

. Reviewed the College’s completed self-assessment questionnaire on regularity.
. Read the financial memorandum with the ESFA/ funding agreement with the ESFA.
. Tested a sample of expenditure disbursed and income received to consider whether they have been applied to

purposes intended by Parliament and in accordance with funding agreements where relevant.

. Obtained the policy for persanal gifts and/or hospitality.
. Obtained the register of personal interests.

. Obtained the financial regulations/ financial procedures.
. Obtained the College’s whistleblowing policy.
Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020 has not been applied to purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Signed: M USCU) /-lj

Mazars LLP

Date: 3( ,?/297/(
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Statement of comprehensive income

INCOME

Funding body grants

Tuition fees and eduation cwntrads
Other grants and ontracs

Other income

Investment income

Donations and Endowments

Total income

EXPENDITURE

Staff aosts

Restructudng asts

Other operating expenses
Depredation

Interest and other finance aysts

Total expenditure

Deficit before other gains and losses

Gain on disposal of assets

Deficit before tax

Taxation

Deficit for the year

Aduanal gain (loss) in respeat of pension schemes

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Notes

LoV &)

[= ]

11

10

23

The notes on pages 31-54 form part of these finandal statements

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2019 2019
Group College Group College
£°000 £000 £7000 £7000
55,207 55,207 60,888 60,888
7,989 7,758 9,576 9,265
3,408 3,236 868 868
2,506 3,400 3,627 4,253
188 188 54 53
69,298 69,849 75,013 75,327
43,773 42,999 44,880 43,039
1,800 1,800 138 23
20,397 21,758 23,032 25,455
10,162 10,159 9,928 9,928
3,016 3,016 3,092 3,092
79,148 79,732 81,070 81,637
(9,850) (9,883) (6,057) (6,310)
63 63 1 !
(9,787) (9,820) (6,056) (6,309)
n
(9,787) (9,820) (6,057) (6,309)
(32,701) (32,701) (10,666) (10,666)
(42,488) (42,521) (16,723) (16,975)
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Statement of changes in reserves

Group
Balance at 1st August 2018

Defiat from the income and expenditure aomunt

Other comprehensive income
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Balance at 31st July 2019

Defiat from the income and expenditure account

Other omprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31st July 2020

College

Balance at 1st August 2018

Defiat from the income and expenditure account

Other comprehensive income
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Balance at 31st July 2019

Defidar from the inmme and expenditure acount

(Other omprehensive income

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure reserves

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31st July 2020

The notes on pages 31-34 form part of these finandal statements

Income and Revaluation Total
Expenditure reserve
account
£000 £7000 £°000
(44,883) 12,034 (32,849)
(6,057) (6,057)
(10,666) (10,666)
2,669 (2,669)
(14,054) (2,669) (16,723)
(58,937) 9,365 (49,572)
(9,787) (9,787)
(32,701) (32,701)
3,433 (3,453)
(39,035) (3,453) (42,488)
(97,972) 5,912 (92,060)
(44,629) 12,034 (32,595)
(6,309) (6,309)
(10,666) (10,666)
2,669 (2,669)
(14,306) (2,669) (16,975)
(58,933) 9,365 (49,570)
(9,820) (9,820)
(32,701) - (32,701)
3,453 (3,453)
(39,068) (3,453) (42,521)
(98,003) 5,912 (92,091)
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Mottingham College

Financial statements for the period ended 315t July 2020

Balance Sheet

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assers
Investments
Investment Property

Current assets

Stodks

Trade and other readvables

Cash and ash equivalents

Less: Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Net current asseis

Total assets less current liabilities

Less: Creditors — amounts falling duce after more rhan one year
Provisions

Defined benefit obligarions

Other provisions

Total net assets

Restricted reserves

Thomas Earp funds gifted the the allege

Other funds gifted o the ollege

Total restricted reserves

Unrestricted reserves

Income and expenditure acount

Pension reserve
Revaluation ceserve
Total unrestricted reserves

Total reserves

Notes Group College Group College
2020 2020 2019 2019

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

I} 134,792 134,791 113,345 113,341
12 . { [
13 1,400 1,400 3,469 3,469
136,192 136,192 116,814 116,811

Gl 43 69 64

14 4,091 4,427 5,580 5,761
19 15,956 15,374 21,098 20,868
20,108 19,844 26,747 26,693

15 (57,821) (57,588) (15,704 (15,644)
(37,713) (37.744) 11,043 11,049

98,479 98,148 127,858 127,860

16 (66,187) (66,187) (90,617} (90,617)
18 (121,883) (121,883) (84,481) (B4,481)
18 (2,469) (2,469) (2,332) (2.332)
(92,060) {92,091) (49,572) (49.570)

43 43 43 43

2H 24 28 28

71 A 71 1

23,840 23,809 25,473 25,475

23 (121,883) (121,883) (84,481) (84,481)
5,912 5912 9,365 9,365

(92,131) (92,162) (49,643) (49,641)

(92,060) (92,091) (49,572) (49,570)

['he finandal statemeats on pages 27 to 54 were approved and authonised forissue by the Corporation on 29th March 2021 and were signed on its behalf on

that date by:

6%7\/\;\3 g €0 0(}

Carole Thorogood
Chair of Governors

The notes on pages 31-54 form part of these finandal statements.
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Nottingham College

Financial statements for the period ended 31st July 2020

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash inflow from operating activities
(Defiar) for the year

Adjustment for non cash items

Depredation of tangible assets

Gain on fair value of investment property
(Inarease) in stodks

(Increase)/decease in debtors

Increase/ (deaease) in aeditors due within one year
Inaease/ (deaease) in aeditors due after one year
Inaease/ (dearease) in provisions

Pensions costs less contdbutions payable

Adjustment for investing or financing activities

Investment income
Interest payable

Taxation paid

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Investment income

Paymeants made to acquire fixed assets

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Interest element of finance lease rental payments
New unseaured loans

Repayments of amounts borrowed

Capital element of finance lease rental payments

Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Notes

2020 2019
£000 £2000
(9,787) (6,057)
10,162 9,928
(133) :
8 (18)
1,489 (722)
(4,660) (3,065)
5,347 14,538
137 63
2,915 3,580
{55) (54
3,016 3,092
: (1)
(63) (1)
8,376 21,283
1,463 1
55 54
(30,807) (17,616)
(29,289) (17,561)
(1,229) (1,310)
M) @)
17,985 3,200
(481) (467)
(503) (447)
15,771 974
(5,142) 4,696
21,098 16,402
15,956 21,098
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Notes to the financial statements

Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques

The following accounting policies have been applicd consistently in dealing with items which are considered material
in relation to the financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial staterents have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice:
Accounting for Further and Higher FEducation 2019 (the 2019 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for
2018 to 2019 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 — "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and has
thercfore applied the relevant public benefit tequirements of FRS 102.

"The pteparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£), rounded to the nearest thousand.

Basis of accounting
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the College and its subsidiary companies, controlled by the Group.
Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to abtain benefits from its activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated income and expenditure account from the date of acquisition or up to the date of
disposal. Intra-group sales and profits are eliminated fully on consolidation. In accordance with FRS 102, the
activities of the student union have not been consolidated because the College does not contral thase activities. The
students union is run as a completely separate entity with all cash flow going through an independently controlled
bank account although monitoring of the account is carried out by the learner service function.

Going concern
The activities of the College, together with the factors likely o affect its future development and performance are set

out in the Members Report on page 10. The financial position of the College, its cashflow, liquidity and borrowings
ate presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.

The College currently has {47.2m of loans outstanding with bankers and central and local government on terms
negotiated in 2011 onwards. The loans are secured by a fixed and floating charge over College assets.

In line with the view stated above in the Members Report, while a material uncertainty exists, the “going concern”
assumption is the most reasonable assumption to use when presenting the accounts for 2019/20

Recognition of income

Revenne grant funding
Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are accounted for under the

accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent grants are measured in line with best estimates for
the period of what is receivable and depend on the particular income stream involved. Any under or over
achievement for the Adult Skills Budget is adjusted for and reflected in the level of recurrent grant recognised in the
income and expenditure account. The final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end
reconciliation process with the funding body following the year end, and the results of any funding audits. 16-18
learner-responsive funding is not normally subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to contract

adjustments.
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Notes to the financial statements

The recurrent grant from the Office for Students (formetly HEFCE) represents the funding allocations attributable
to the current financial vear and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recogiused in income when the College is
entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of
performance related conditions being met 1s tecognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and

released to income as the conditions are met.

Capital grant funding

Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in income over the expected
useful life of the asset, under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102. Other capital grants are recognised in
income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met.

Fee income
Income from tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised in the period

for which it is received.

Tnvestment income
All income from short-term deposits is credited to the statement of consolidated income account in the period in

which it 1s earned on a recetvable basts.
Accounting for post-retirement benefits

Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(1PS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit plans, which are externally
funded and contracted out of the State Second Penston

Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS)

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
cmployces’ working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantally level percentage of
current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of
valuations using a prospective benefit method. The TPS is a muld-employer scheme and the College is unable fo
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilitics of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS
15 therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income
statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Nottingharmshire Local Government Pension Scheme

‘The LGPS 15 a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are
measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities, The actuarial valuations are obrained at least
triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included
as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit Liability/asset is also recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest
income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the
period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets 1s recognised in other tecognised gains and losses
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Notes to the financial statements

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Short term Employment benefits

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits ate accrued and
measured as the additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Enhanced Pensions

‘The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing peasion to a former member of staff is paid by a college annually. An
estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the ongoing pension of a former member of staff is
charged in full to the College’s income in the year that the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge
is made to provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced pension spreadsheet provided by the funding

bodies.

Non-current assets - tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulared depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Certain
items of fixed assets that had been revalued to fair value on or prior to the date of transition to the FE HE.
SORP, are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that revaluation.

Land and buildings
Freehold buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis over their expected useful lives as follows:

e Buildings — 50 yeats

®  Refurbishments — 50 years
Freehold land is not depreciated.

Freehold buildings are depreciated over their expected useful economic life to the College of between 20 and 50
yeats. The College has a policy of depreciating major adaptations to buildings over the period of their useful
economic life of between 20 and 50 years.

Where land and buildings are acquired with the aid of specific grants, they are capitalised and depreciated as
above. The related grants are credited to a deferred income account within creditors, and are released to the
income and expenditure account over the expected useful economic life of the related asset on a systematic basis
consistent with the depreciation policy. The deferred income is allocated between creditors due within one year
and those due after more than one year.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.

Assets under construction
Assers under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ certificates and other direct

costs, incurred to 31 July. They are not depreciated until they are brought into use.

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets
Where significant expenditure s incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it is charged to income in
the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future benefits to the College, in which case it is capitalised and

depreciated on the relevant basis.
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Mottingham Collsge
Financial statements for the peried ended 315t July 2020

Notes to the financial statements

Equipment
Equipment costing less than £1,000 per individual item is tecognised as expenditure in the period of acquisition
unless it is part of a larger project. All ather equipment is capitalised at cost.

Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful economic life as follows:

e technical equipment 7 years
®  motor vehicles 4 years
®  computer equipment 3 years
e furniture, fixtures and fittings 7 years

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred.

Leased assets
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any lease premiums

or incentives relating to leases signed after 1st August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease term. The
College has taken advantage of the transitional exemptions in FRS 102 and has retained the policy of spreading
lease premiums and incentives to the date of the first market rent review for leases signed before 1st August

2014.

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset

are treated as finance leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset (or, if lower, the
present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Assets held under finance leases are included in
tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charges ate allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element

outstanding.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment in the individual financia) statements.

Investment Property
Investment properties are held at fair value in the balance sheet. Formal market valuations are completed at least hi-

annually with any material movements released to the income and expenditure account.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if

they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with 1nsignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3
months or less from the date of acquisition.

_l’;g_e 340f54



Ginahan

Flrsncial v 2R

Notes to the financial statements

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s contractual

obligations, rather than the financial instrumen(’s legal form.

All loans, investments and shott term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic financial instruments in
accordance with I'RS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction
costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, however the Group has calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis
1s not material and so these financial instruments are stated on the balance sheet at histotical cost. Loans and
investments that are payable or reccivable within one year are not discounted.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are tecorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the

transaction. Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the financial period with all resulting exchange differences being taken to income
in the period in which they arise.

Taxation
The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it

mects the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is
potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
secrions 478-488 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act
1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

"The College 1s partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover around 1% of the
VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs of such inputs and added to
the cost of tangible fixed assets as approprate, where the inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when;
e the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event;
® itis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; and
® areliable estimare can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the dme value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to settle the
obligation 1s recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a finance cost in the statement of comprehensive income in the period it arises.

A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but
either it is not probable that an outflow of resoutces will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be

measured reliably.

Contingent kiabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

Agency arrangements

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of discretionary support funds. Related payments
received from the funding bodies and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the income and
expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal ask or enjoys minimal economic benefit

related to the transaction.
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Mottingham College
Financial stataments for the pericd ended 319st July 2020

Notes to the financial statements

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation

uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements:

Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee ate operating or finance leases.
These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred from

the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basts.

Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the group's tangible assets. Factors taken mnto
consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future

performance of that unit.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty:

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than investment propetties, are depreciation over their useful lives taking into account
residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may
vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and
maintenance programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as futute market

conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposed values.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which
are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by
the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2020. Any differences between the figures detived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the cartying amount on the pension liability.
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Nettingham College

Financial statements for the period ended 31st July 2020

Notes to the financial statements

2 Funding council grants

Recurrent grants

Eduaton and Skills l'unding Ageney - adult
Lduauion and Skills Funding Ageney — 16 -18
Eduation and Skills Funding Agengy - apprenticeships
Office for Students

Specific Grants

Releases of government apital grants

HE grant

Apprentiaships Provider Relicf Sdieme

Total

Under the Provider Relief Scheme, the College reaived funding of £100,000 this amount was fully spent in the year,

3 Tuition fees and education contracts

Adult Eduation [ees
Apprenticeship contraas

liees for I'E loan supported mourscs
Jiees for 1L loan supported students
Intemational students' fees

Total

Details of grant and fee inmwme

Grant income from the OF

Grant mmme from other bodics

I'ee income for taught awards (exdusive of VATT)

liee income for rescardh awards (exdusive of VAT)

Fee inomme from non-qualifying courses(exdusive of VAT)

Total grant and fee income

4  Other grants and contracts

Firasmus
Coronavirus Job Retention Sdheme

Other grants and contrads

Total

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2019 2019
Group College Group Collcge
£°000 £°000 £000 £000
17,441 17,441 18,695 18,695
31,709 3,709 32,278 32,278
3,690 3,690 7,146 7,146
350 350 550 550
1,917 1,917 2,219 2,219

100 100
55,207 55,207 60,888 60,888
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2019 2019
Group College Group College
£°000 £°000 £°000 £000
1,243 1012 2,051 1,740
354 354 164 164
3,085 3,085 3,297 3,297
3,207 3,207 3,687 3,687
100 100 377 377
7,989 7,758 9,576 9,265
350) 350 550 350
52.84) 52,840 58,119 58,119
3,207 3,207 3,687 3,687
4,782 4,551 5,889 5,578
61,180 60,949 08,245 67,934
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2019 2019
Group College Group College
£°000 £°000 £000 £'000
17 17

934 762
2,474 2474 #51 851
3,408 3,236 868 868

The College fudoughed some of the citering, deaning,estates and commerdal inwme staff under the Govemment's Coronavirus Job Retention

Scheme. The funding received of £934,000 relates to staff wsts induded in the statf wsts note below.




Nottingham College
Financial statements for the peried ended 315t July 2020

Notes to the financial statements

5 Otherincome

Catering and residences

Other income genenating adtivities
Othet grant income

Non government apital grants
Misellaneous inmme

Total

6 Investment income

Other interest receivable
Gain on revaluation of investment property

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2M9 2019
Group College Group College
£'000 £7000 £7000 £'000
1,024 1025 1,389 1,389
426 425 BH1 Hi3
216 216 498 498
759 759 677 617
#1 1,035 182 46
2,506 3,460 3,627 4,253
Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2019 2019
Group College Group College
£7000 £000 £°000 £°000
55 54 54 53

133 133
188 188 54 53
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Nettingham College
Financial statements for the peried ended 345t July 2020

Notes to the financial statements

7 Staff costs - Group
The average number of persons (induding key management personnel) employed by the College during the

year, on an average headoount basis, was:

2020 2019
No. No.
Teaching staft 876 236
Non teadhing staff 479 434
1,355 1,370

Staff costs for the above persons
2020 2019
£°000 £°000
Wages and salarics 30,254 32,184
Sodal seautity costs 2,548 2,793
Orher pension adsts 8,721 8.434
Payroll sub total 41,523 43,411
Contraced out staffing serviaes 2,250 1,469
43,773 44,880
Restructuring ansts - oontracual 1,800 138

non contradual

45,573 45,018

I'he aorporation docs not have any salary sacifice arrangements in plac.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are thase persons having authority and responsibility for planning, direating and
oontrolling the activities of the College and are represented by the College [Exeative T'eam which comprses the
Chief Exeaitive Officer, Prindpals and Via: Prindpal. Staff wsts indude avmpensation paid to key management

personncel for loss of office

Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

2020 2019
No. No.
The number o key management personnel induding the Acounting 4 4

O fficer was:

The number of key management pesonnel and other staff who rexived annual emoluments, exduding
pension contriburions and employers national insurmnce but induding benefits in kind, in the following ranges

was:
Senior post-holders Other scaffl

2020 2019 2020 2019

No. No. No. No.

6 6

70,001 to £75,000

£80,001 to £85,000 I 3 3
£85,001 to £90,000 |
£90,001 to £95,000 |
£105,001 ta £110,000 2 2
£200,001 to £210,000 1 1
4 4 9 10
Access and Participation (Payroll Element) 2020
£°000
Acwess Investment 23
Iinandal Support
Disability Support (exduding expenditure induded in the two aitegories above) 34
Rescardh and Evaluation 12
69
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Notes to the financial statements

7 Staff costs - Group and College

Key management personnel compensation s made up as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

Salarics - gross of salary saaifice and waived emoluments 503 420

limployers National Tnsurana 65 57

568 477

Pension antributions 28 28

Total emoluments 596 504
There were no amounts due to key management personnd that were waived in the year, nor any salary saaifice arrangements in place,

The above compensation indudes amounts payable to the Aomwunting Officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of:

2020 2019

£°000 £000

Salarics 207 207

207 207

Pension ontributions

The goveming body adopted AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code in April 2019 and will assess pay in line with its prinaples

in future.

‘The remunenation padkage of the Chief Lxcaitive Offier is subjea to review by the Remuncration Committee of the goveming

body who use bendimarking information to provide objedtive guidance.

The Chief [xeartive Offier reports to the Chair of the Goveming Body who undertakes an annual review of his performance
against the oollege's overall objedives using both qualitative and quantitative measures of performanac

Relationship of Chief Executive Officer pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple;
Chief Excaitive Officer's basicsalary as a multiple of the median of all staft 7.4 (2018-19 8 4)
Chief xeaitive Officer's total remuneration as a mulnple of the median 74 (2018-19 8.4)

There was no compensation paid to former key management personnel in respect of loss of office.

The members of the Corporation other than the Aaounting Officer and the staff members did not reccive any pagment from the institution

other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistena: expenses inaurred 1 the murse of their duties
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Notes to the financial statements

8 Other operating expenses

Year ended 31 July Year ended 31 July
2020 2020 2019 2019
Group College Group College
£000 £000 £000 £000
Teaching msts 10,206 10,2035 13,773 13,729
Non teaching costs 5,248 6,694 5,194 7,768
Premises adosts 4,943 4,859 +,063 3,958
Total 20397 21,758 23,032 25455
Other operating expenses include: 2020 2019
£000 £000
Auditors’ eemunemtion:
Iinanaal statements audit * 51 49
Tax ompliane 2 i
Other servies 7 3
Intemal audit 48 47
Opcrating lease expense 19 19
* Indudes £46,000 in respea of the College (2018-19 £46,00t)
Access and Participation 2020
£000
Aaess Investment (1) 198
Finandal Support 162
Disability Suppoa (exduding expendituce induded in the two atcgories above) (it) 37
Research and Evaluation (i) 16
413

() £23k of these msts are alecady induded in the overall staff cost figures induded in the inanaal statements, see note 7
() 34k of these wsts are already induded in the overall staff st figures induded in the finanoal statemenrs, see note 7
(i) £12k of these wsis are aleeady induded in the overall staff st figures induded in the finanaal statements, see note 7

Nottingham College's Acess and Particpation Plan can be acessed via the link below;

httpet s pettmishamen b acubs st wmveety: st welvme fe the uoerty aontecat notimham: ool s At Al e e dusiment
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Notes to the financial statements

9 Interest payable - Group and College

2020 2019

£°000 £7000

On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans: 1,229 1,310

1,229 1,310

On finance leases | 1

Net interest on defined pension liability (note 23) 1,786 1,781

Total 3,016 3,092
10 Taxation - Group only

2020 2019

£°000 £°000

Tax payable by the group 1

The members do not believe that the College was liable for any corporation tax atising out of its activities
during either year. The tax charge relates to its trading subsidiary companies.
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11 Tangible fixed assets (Group)

Cost or valuation

At 1 Aupust 2019

Transfer from [nvestment Property
Additions

Disposals

At 31 July 2020

Depreciation

At 1 August 2019

Charge for the year

Aaxlerated Depredation Charge
Elimination in respeat of disposals
At 31 July 2020

Net book value at 31 July 2020

Net book valuc at 31 July 2019

The net book value of equipment indudes an amount of £nil (2018/19 — fnil) in respeat of assets held under finance

Land and Equipment Assets under Total
buildings construction
£°000 £000 £'000 £'000
131,535 32,581 19,956 184,072
2,902 : 2,202
536 115 30,156 30,807
(7.458) (7.458)
126,815 32,696 50,112 209,623
40,695 30,032 70,727
2,59 1,196 3,792
6,370 6,370
(6.058} (6.058)
43,603 31,228 74,831
83,212 1,468 50,112 134,792
90,840 2,549 19,956 113,345

leases. The depreaation charge on these asscts for the year was fnil (2018719 — £uil).
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11 Tangible fixed assets (College only)

Land and Equipment Assets under Total
buildings construction
£000 £°000 £°000 £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2019 131,535 32,551 19,956 184,042
Transfer from Investment Property 2,202 2,202
Additions 536 115 30,156 30,807
Disposals (7,458) (7,458)
At 31 July 2020 126,815 32,666 50,112 209,593
Depreciation
At 1 August 2019 40,692 30,009 70,701
Charge for the year 2,595 1,194 3,789
Aoxlerated Depredation Charge 6,370 6,370
Lilimination in respea of disposals (6,058) (6,058
At 31 July 2020 43,599 31,203 74,802
Net book value at 31 July 2020 83,216 1,463 50,112 134,791
Net book value at 31 July 2019 99,399 3,193 19,956 113,341

The net book value of cquipment indudes an amount of £oil (2018/19 — £nil) in resped of assets held under finana

leases. The depredation dharge on these assets for the year was £nil (2018/19 — fnil).
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12 Non current Investments

College College

2020 2019

£000 £°000

[nvestments in subsidiary ampanics 1 1
Total 1 1

The College owns 100 per @at of the issued ordinary £1 shares of Nottingham College Setvices Timited, a company inmtporated in
England and Wales, and 100 per cent of the issued otdinary £1 shares of Emtec Colleges Jimited, a company incotporated in I2ngland
and Wales. The prindpal business activity of Nottingham College Serviees Limited is the provision of deaning servies. [imtec Colleges

Limited is an interm ediate holding company.

13 Investment Property

Group College Group College
2020 2020 2019 2019
£°000 £000 £°000 £°000
Opening balance 3,469 3,469 3,469 3,469
Transfer to Fixed Assets (2,202) (2,202) - -
Gain on fair value 133 133 - -
Total 1,400 1,400 3,469 3,469
The frechold Property was valued as at 31 July 2020 by an extemal valuer, Gerald Eve LLP, a regulated firm of
Chartered Surveyors. The valuation was prepared in acordanae with the requirements of the RICS Valuation -
Global Standards 2020 and guidance set out in UK national supplement 2018 [ollectively “the Standards”|
published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and [inandal Reporting Standard 102 and the
Statement of Recomm ended Pradtie 'Aavunting for Further and Higher liduation. The valuation was
undertaken on a Fair Valuc basts and valued by feference to the oompanative method
14 Trade and other receivables
Group College Group College
2020 2020 2019 2019
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Amounts falling due within onc year:
T'tade receivables 2,592 2.595 2,083 1,961
Amounts owed by group undertakings:

Substdiary undertakings - 334 304
Prepayments and acrued inoome 1,499 1,498 3,497 3,496
Amounts owed by the ESIA ¥
Total 4,091 4,427 5,580 5,761
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group College Group College

2020 2020 2019 2019

£°000 £2000 £°000 £°000

Bank loans * 47,198 47,198 481 481
Obligations under PEI 564 564 503 503
Trade payables 300 280 720 668
Other taxation and sodal security 1,273 1,277 1,216 1,202
Acauals and deferred income 6,686 6,469 8,454 8,460
Defetred income - government eapital grants 1,800 1,800 1,300 1,300
Unspent apital grants 2,890 2,890
Learner Support Funds - - 140 140
Total 57,821 57,588 15,704 15,644

* Following a breach of onc of four covenants during the year, the College's borrowing has been redassified as

falling due within one year.

16 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Group College Group College

2020 2020 2019 2019

£7000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans . 29,214 29,214
Obligations under PFL 1,341 1,341 1,905 1,905
Rent Creditor 424 424 479 479
Deferred income - government capital grants 64,422 64,422 59,019 59,019
Total 66,187 66,187 90,617 90,617
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17 Maturity of debt
(a) Bank loans and overdrafts

Bank loans and overdrafts are repayable as follows:

Group College Group College
2020 2020 2019 2019
£'000 £°000 £°000 £°000
In one year or less 47,198 47,198 481 481
Between one and two years 3,615 3,615
Between two and five years 9,644 9,644
In five years or more 15,955 15,955
Total 47,198 47,198 29,695 29,695
The College's loans are detailed as follows; Amount
Lender Term Rate £'000
Barclays RCF Jun2022 7 337% 4,940
Barclays Facility A Jun 2022 4 3.37% 2,082
Barclays Facility B Jjun2022 7 33™% 2,268
Nottingham City Council Apr2030 T 5.00% 21,708
ESFA Oct 2030 1.41% 16,200
TOTAL 47,198
The loans are scaited on a portion of the freebold land and buildings of the College.
(b) PFI leases
The net PF] leasc obligations to whidh the institution is committed are:
Group College Group College
2020 2020 2019 2019
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
1n one year or less 564 504 503 303
Between two and five years 1,341 1,341 1,905 1,905
Total 1,905 1,905 2,408 2,408

PI'l lease obligations are seasred on the asscts to which they relate.
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18  Other Provisions
Group and College

Defined Enhanced Other Total
benefit benefit

PRTI blioati
£000 £000 £000 £7000
At 1 August 2019 (84,481) (2,332) (86,813)
Expenditure in the pedod (4.950) 112 (4,434)
Aauaria loss (32,452) (249) (32,701)
Ae31 July 2020 (121.883) (2.469) - {124,352)

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilitics under the College’s membership of the Loal Govemment Pension Scheme. Further details are given in
Note 23.

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cwst of staff who have already left the College’s employ and cmmitments for reorganisation msts (com which
the College annot reasonably withdeaw at the balance shect date This provision has been reclailated in amordanae with guidance issued by the funding

bodies.

The prnapal assumptions for this alailation are:

2020 2019
Price in flation 2.20% 220%
Discount rate 1.30% 220%
19 Cash and cash equivalents
At 1August Cash flows Other At31 July
2019 changes 2020
£°000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and ash equivalents 21,098 (5,142) 15,956
Overdrafts
Total 21,098 (5,142) - 15,956
20 Capital commitments
Group and College
2020 2019
£°000 £°000
4,529 33,306

Commitments antracted forat 31 July
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21 Lease Obligations

At 31 July the College had minimum lease payments under non-ancellable operating leases as follows:

Group and College
2020 2019
£000 £000

Future minimum lease payments due
Land and buildings
Not later than one year 500 493
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,564 1,331
Later than five years 616 846

2,680 2670
Other
Not later than onc year 157 156
Later than one year and not later than five years 364 520

later than five years

521 676
Total leasc payments due 3,201 3,346

22 Contingent liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 July 2020 or 31 July 2019.
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23 Defined bencfit obligations

The College’s employees belong to two prindpal post-employment benefir plans: the Teadhers” Pension Scheme [ngland
and Wales (T'PS) for aademicand related staff; and the Nottinghamshire Loal Government Pension Sdieme (1LGPS) for
non-teading swaff, whidh is managed by Nottinghamshire County Coundl. Both are multi-employer defined-bencfit
plans

The pension asts arc assessed in aanrdance with the adviee of independent qualified acuares. The latest farmal actuanal
valuation of the TIPS was 31 March 2016 and of the 1.GPS 31 Mardi 2019

Total pension cost for the year 2020 2019
£'000 £'000

‘{'eachers Pension Sdieme: oontributions paid 2,759 2,085

lLoal Goverment Pension Sdieme:

Contrbutions paid 2,859 2.653

Pension Strain 44 27

I'RS 102 (28) charge 3.119 2,458

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 6,022 5,138

Enhanad pension dharge to Statement of Comprehensive

[nowme

Total Pension Cost for Year included within Staff Costs 81782 7,223

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers’ Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

‘The Teachers' Pension Sdeme (I'P$) 1s a statutory, wntributory, defined benefit sdieme, governed by the Teadwers’
Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Thesce regulations apply to teadhers in schoaols, olleges and other eduational
establishments. Membership is automatic for teadhers and lecturers at eligible institutions. T'eadhers and ledurees are able
to opt out of the TPS,

The TPS 15 an unfunded scheme and members cntribute on a ’pay as you go* basis — these contributions, along with
those made by employers, are aedited to the [ixdiequer under arrangements governed by the above Aa. Retirernent and

other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Paciament

Under the definitions set outin FRS 102 (28.11), the T'PS is a multi-cmployer pension plan. The ollege is uaable to

identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan

Aanddingly, the allege has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has aaounted forits oontrbutions to the
scheme as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The wllege has set aut above the information available on the plan and

the implicitions for the avllege in terms of the antigpated eontabution rates

The valuation of the 1'PS is arried out in line with regulations made under the Public Serviee Pension A 2013
Valuations acdit the tcadhers” pension acwunt with a real aate of retum assuming funds are invested in notional

investments that produa that real rate of retum.

Valuation of the Teachers” Pension Scheme

The latest actuarial review of the 1PS was crried out as at 31 March 2016, The valuation report was published by the
Department for Eduation {the Department) in Aprdl 2019, The valuation reported toral scheme liahilitics (pensions
airrently in payment and the estimated st of future benefits) for serviee to the eftective date of £218 billion, and
notional asscts (estimated future wontributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of
£198 billian giving a notional past serviar defiat of £22 billion

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay from Seprember
2019 onwards (mpared to 16.48% dudng 2018/9). DAT has agreed to pay a teadher pension employer contrbution
grant to cover the additional @sts dunny the 2019-20 academic year,

A full copy of the valuation report and supportting doaumentation can be found on the Teachers’ Peasion Scheme

websice.

I'he pension wsts paid to 1PS in the year amounted to £2,759,000 (2019: £2,085,000)
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23 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

FRS 102 (28)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds adminstered by
Nottinghamshire County Coundl . The total mntribution made for the year ended 31 July 2020 was
£3,735,000, of which employer’s contrbutions totalled £2,859,000 and employees’ wmntributions totalled
£876,000. The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.5% for employers and range from 5.5% to
12.5% for employees, depending on salary acoording to a national scale.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2019 updated to 31
July 2020 by a qualified independent actuary.

At 31 July At31July

2020 2019

Rate of inarease in salaties 3.25% 3.85%
Future pensions inaeases 2.25% 2.35%
Disoount rate for scheme liabilities 1.35% 2.15%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.20% 2.35%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% 50%

The cutrent mortality assumptions indude suffident allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

At 31 July At 31 July
2020 2019
years years
Retiring today

Males 21.8 21.6
Females 24.4 24.4

Retiring in 20 years
Males 232 233
Females 259 26.2
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23 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Schemc (Continucd)

‘The College's shace of the assets in the plan and the expected rates of retum were:

Long-term Fair Value at

rate of return 31 July 2020

expected at

31 July 2020

£000

Tiquity instruments 60% 69,729
Giles 4% 4,530
Other Bonds 9% 9,993
Property 13% 15,354
Cash 4% 4,584
Inflation-linked pool fund 4% 4,392
Infrastructure 6% 6,839
Unit Trust 1% 1,250
Total market value of assets A

Long-term
rate of return
expected at
31 July 2019

Fair Value at
31 July 2019

£000

72,412
3,799
10,810
15,787
2,819
4,240
5,616
1,183

116,666

The amount included in the balance sheect in respect of the defined benefit pension plan [and enhanced

pensions benefits] is as follows:

[Fair value of plan asscts

Present value of plan liabilities
Present value of unfunded liabilities
Net pension liability

2020 2019
£7000 £000
116,671 116.666
(238,420) (201,009)
(134) (138)

(121,883)

(B4,481)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan arc as follows:

Amounts included in staff costs
Current service aost

Past servioe cost

Total

Amounts included in investment

Net interest

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Retum on pension plan assets

Orther aquarial losses on assets

Change in finundal assum ptions

Change in demographicassumptions

Expedenoe losses adsing on defined benefit obligations

Amount reaognised in Other Comprehensive Inaome

2020 2019
£7000 £°000
5,978 5,008
: 1,325
5,978 6,393
1,786 1,781
1,786 1,781
(3,437) 208
652
(33,944) (21,595)
3,462 10,790
815
(32,452) (10,507)
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23 Defined benefit obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)

Movement in net defined benefit (liability) during the year

(Defidr) in sdhieme at 1T August
Movement in year:
Current service aost
Employer ovntrbutions
Past service aost
Net interest on the defined (liability)
Administrative expenses
Actuarial gain or loss
Net defined benefit (liability) at 31 July

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations at start of period
Current Service aost

Interest ast

Contrnbutions by scheme partidpants
Lixpericnae pains and losses on defined benefit obligations
Changes in finandal assumptions

Change in demographicassumptions

Fstimated benefits paid

Unfunded pension payments

Past Service aost

Defined benefit obligations at end of period

Reconciliation of Assets

Fair value of plan assets at start of period
Interest on plan assets

Returmn on plan assers

Other actuarial losses

Administration expenses

LEmployer omntrbutions

Contributions by Scheme partidpants
Estimated benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

2020 2019
£000 £°000
(84,481) (68,410)
(5,978) (5,068)
2,859 2,653
(1,325)
(1,786) (1,781)
(45) (43)
(32.452) (10,507
(121,883) (84,481)
2020 2019
£000 £000
201,147 182,084
5,978 5,068
4,208 4,790
876 845
(815)
33,944 21,595
(3,462) (10,790)
(3,402) (3,770)
(10) -
. 1,325
238,554 201,147
116,666 113,674
2,512 3,009
(3,437) 208
652
(45) (43)
2,859 2,653
876 845
(3,412) (3,770
116,671 116,666
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24 Related party transactions

Duc to the nature of the College’s operations and the amposition of the board of govemors beang deawn from local pubhc
and prvate sector vrganisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the
board of governors may have an interest. All transadions involving such organisations arc @nduded at amn’s length and in

amordana: with the College’s finangal regulations and normal procutement proadures.

The total expenses paid to oron behalf of the Govemors during the vear was £284; 9 govemors (2018-19: £492; 4 govemors)
"Ihis represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of padket expenses inaurred in attendling Govemor meetings and

charity events in their offidal capaaty

No Govemor has reaived any remuneration or waived pagments from the College or its subsidiares during the year (2019

None)

25 Amounts disbursed as agent

Learner support funds

[unding body grants — bursary support

Funding body grants — disaetionary leamer support
Funding budy grants — residential bursaries

Other Punding body grants

[nterest camed

Disbursed to students
Administration asts

Balana: unspent as at 31 July, induded in aeditors

26 Subsidiary undertakings

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the Company.

Name

M Limited
EMTEC (Shanghai) Limited
Nottingham College Serviass Limited

Country of
incorporation

LK
China
UK

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
1,671 1,533
1,252 1,203
2,923 2,826
(2,836) (2,563)
(87) (123)
0 140
Class of Holding
shares
Ordinary Lty
Oudinary bxets
Oxdinary 100
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